Ya

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

FRY-6

OMB Number 7100-0297

Approval expires September 30, 2018
Page 1 of 2

Annual Report of Holding Companies—FR Y-6

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)); Sections
11(a)(1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(c) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13(c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.F.R. § 225.5(b)) and section 10(c)(2)(H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies and top-tier savings and loan holding companies organized
under U.S. law, and by any foreign banking organization that
does not meet the requirements of and is not treated as a qualify-
ing foreign banking organization under Section 211.23 of
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23). (See page one of the general
instructions for more detail of who must file.) The Federal
Reserve may not conduct or sponsor, and an organization (or a
person) is not required to respond to, an information collection
unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I,Alan L. Lackey

Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

Chairman / CEO
Title of the Holding Company Director and Official

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information," 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that the Reporter and individual consent to public release of all

details in @epon concerning thatindividual.
\___

Signature of Holding Company Director and Official
02/29/2016
Date of Signature ‘\

For holding companies not registered with\the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

[ is included with the FR Y-6 report

will be sent under separate cover

O is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RsSDID AHIGT

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):
December 31, 2015

Month / Day / Year

N/A
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEl) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address
Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc.
Legal Title of Holding Company

6220 Milwaukee Avenue
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

Lubbock X 79424
City State Zip Code
same

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Debbie Gleason SVP

Name Title

806-771-7717 212

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

806-771-9658

Area Code / FAX Number

dgleason@lonestarwtx.co

E-mail Address

www.lonestarwtx.com
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Does the reporter request confidential treatment for any portion of this
submission?

Yes Please identify the report items to which this request applies:
Report items 4. - 3.(c) & 4.(c)
In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2
and 3, a letter justifying the request is being provided.

The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential."

L__]No

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per response, including time to gather and
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, DC 20503.

12/2015
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Annual Report of Bank Holding Companies - Form FR Y-6 SEP 06 2016

Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc.
Lubbock, Texas
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015

Report Item
1 The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its securities holders and is not

registered with the SEC. The annual report is not available as of this date. It will be
forwarded as soon as available.
2a: Organization Chart

Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. owns 100% of Lone Star State Bank of West Texas

Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc.
LEI: None
Lubbock, Texas
USA
Incorporated in Texas

Lone Star State Bank of West Texas
LEI: None
Lubbock, Texas
USA

Incorporated in Texas

2b: Branch listing submitted to the Federal Reserve Bank via e-mail on 2/5/16.
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CONNOR  McMILLON  MITCHELL® SHENNUM ©
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary
Lubbock, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lone Star State
Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the con-
solidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presenta-
tion of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonable-
ness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying 2015 supplemental consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements
or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Commars Prietraldor. Yutchtlle & shammunsd L% C.

Amarillo, Texas
March 24, 2016
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2015 and 2014

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits in bank

Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued interest receivable
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value
Federal Reserve Bank stock and other investments, at cost

Loans
Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Premises and equipment, net
Intangibles, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2015 2014
$ 88,902,368 $ 81,862,475
5,545,750 531,119
94,448,118 82,393,594
6,150,110 6,350,347
29,809,797 26,110,344
2,526,750 2,453,650
637,767,619 622,096,366
(7,164,209) (7,636,293)
630,603,410 614,460,073
9,616,614 8,890,185
8,738,447 9,126,895
941,850 639,185

$ 782,735,096

$ 750,424,273

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Total deposits

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Capital lease obligations

Notes payable

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
5,636,962 and 5,532,962 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$ 185,023,769

$ 188,762,742

501,819,585 469,580,618
686,843,354 658,343,360
354,869 204,223
325,918 298,817
1,007,549 41,218
2,885,000 4,185,000
691,416,690 663,072,618
5,536,962 5,632,962
63,854,224 63,617,219
21,849,302 18,053,009
77,918 148,465
91,318,406 87,351,655

$ 782,735,096

$ 750,424,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fees
Available-for-sale securities
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing
deposits in banks

Total interest income
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Other debt
Total interest expense
NET INTEREST INCOME

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
NET INTEREST INCOME, AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts
Debit card income
Other noninterest income
Net gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets

Total noninterest income

NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Data processing
FDIC assessment expense
Professional fees
Advertising
Communication
Legal
Amortization of intangible assets
Other general and administrative

Total noninterest expenses
Income before income taxes

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

015 201
$ 30,424,211 $ 27,390,393
649,004 383,769
200,893 51,038
31,274,108 27,825,200
3,957,420 2,292,400
153,021 231,690
4,110,441 2,524,090
27,163,667 25,301,110
3,500,000 910,004
23,663,667 24,391,106
591,602 496,466
369,144 338,525
154,606 158,203
(3,076) (2,499)
1,112,276 990,695
10,039,745 9,654,542
1,366,540 1,212,593
774,508 674,836
440,635 340,646
236,782 237,871
97,215 141,520
322,486 232,214
31,416 36,256
388,448 388,448
1,481,674 1,414,943
15,179,449 14,333,869
9,596,494 11,047,932
42,801 39,441
$ 9,553,693 $ 11,008,491

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014

NET INCOME $ 9,553,693 $ 11,008,491

OTHER ITEMS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (EXPENSE)
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities (70,547) (77,934)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for
gains realized in net income - -

Total other items of comprehensive
income (expense) (70,547) (77,934)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 9,483,146 $ 10,930,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Net securities amortization
Provision for loan losses
Accretion of deferred loan fees
Amortization of intangibles
Depreciation
(Gain) loss on asset disposals
(Gain) loss on sale of foreclosed assets
Stock option compensation
Change in other assets
Change in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Available-for-sale securities sales, maturities, and calls

Purchase of available-for-sale securities

Federal Reserve Bank stock subscription remitted

Federal Home Loan Bank stock subscription redemption (remitted)
Net loan originations, collections and write-off

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets

Premise and equipment purchases
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in deposits

Advance on other borrowings

Lease obligation (payments)

Dividends paid

Debt payments

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds
Income taxes paid - state

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing

and Financing Activities:
Assets acquired in settlement of loans
Capital lease obligation for banking facility

2015 2014
9,553,693 $ 11,008,491
(43,465) 132,352
3,500,000 910,004
(104,947) (232,111)
388,448 388,448
713,501 669,947
3,076 2,499
17,304 ’
195,255 109,178
(312,394) (1,304,380)
177,747 147,739
14,088,218 11,832,167
58,525,000 67,360,000
(62,251,535) (72,556,022)
. (600,000)
(73,100) 1,415,900
(19,403,374) (139,286,181)
57,646 -
(346,519) (207,449)
2,690 -

(23,489,192)

(143,873,752)

28,499,994 178,765,473
- 2,500,000
(32,846) (15,904)
(5,757,400) (4,269,361)
(1,300,000) (9,800,000)
45,750 19,972,871
21,455,498 187,153,079
12,054,524 55,111,494
82,393,594 27,282,100
94,448,118 $ 82,393,594
3,959,795 $ 2423717
42,801 39,441
135,016 .
999,177 :

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations
Organization

Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary (LSSBI) is a Texas corporation and registered
bank holding company and was formed on March 7, 2007. LSSBI operated as a development
stage enterprise through December 2, 2007. Lone Star State Bank of West Texas (the Bank), a
wholly owned Texas chartered bank subsidiary of LSSBI, began operations on December 3,
2007. The consolidated entity is referred to herein as the Company.

Operations

The Bank provides a variety of financial services to individuals, businesses and other entities
through its locations in Lubbock, Odessa, Brownfield, Midland, and Big Spring, Texas. Its
primary deposit products are interest and noninterest bearing demand deposit accounts,
savings accounts and term certificates. The Bank also uses deposits as a source of funding.
Its primary lending areas are oil and gas production and related service businesses, other
commercial operations, commercial real estate, agriculture, residential real estate and
consumer.

Tax Status

For Federal income tax purposes, LSSBI elected to be taxed as a Subchapter S corporation
beginning at inception. The Bank is a Qualified Subchapter S corporation (Q-Sub) that is
disregarded for Federal income tax purposes. The Company's consolidated Federal taxable
income, income tax credits and tax preference items are recognized on LSSBI stockholders'
personal income tax returns.

The Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’'s (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective January 1, 2009. The
Company has evaluated their status as a pass-through entity and believes there is sufficient
positive evidence to support their position.

The Company's Federal Tax Returns for 2013, 2014, and 2015 are subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service for three years after they were filed.

In 2006, the State of Texas modified its franchise tax structure. The change was effective for
franchise tax reports filed on or after January 1, 2008. Management has concluded that, as
modified, Texas franchise taxes are income taxes for financial reporting purposes under
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and the Company is subject to the modified
franchise tax as a combined group; the Company, instead of its stockholders, is liable for Texas
franchise taxes. The franchise tax liability is based on the previous year's income and
expenses; accordingly, accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets include $50,004 and $42,000 for estimated Texas franchise taxes payable at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LSSBI and the Bank.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Increase in Authorized Shares

In August 2014, by the approval of more than two-thirds of the Company's outstanding shares
entitled to vote, the certificate of formation was amended to increase the number of authorized
shares of common stock from 5,000,000 shares to 20,000,000 shares.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
allowance for loan losses and related provision, and the fair value of financial instruments are
material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other
comprehensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale,
and unrealized losses related to factors other than credit on debt securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company includes all cash on hand and balances due from other banks, interest-bearing
deposits and term certificates of other banks, federal funds sold and purchased under agree-
ments to resell, which have original maturities less than three months, as cash and cash
equivalents in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

From time to time, the Company may invest in interest-bearing deposits and term certificates of
other banks. These deposits will be carried at cost with interest income thereon recognized on
the accrual basis.

Federal regulations require banks to set aside specified amounts of cash as reserves against
transaction and time deposits which fluctuate daily. The Bank's reserve requirement totaled
approximately $14,453,000 and $15,682,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
These reserves may be held as vault cash, in an interest-bearing account with a district Federal
Reserve Bank or as deposits with correspondents. Management believes that the Bank com-
plies with these requirements
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Securities

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as "held to maturity" and recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities are
recorded at fair value with changes in fair value included in earnings. The Company had no
securities classified as trading or held-to-maturity at December 31, 2015 or 2014. Securities not
classified as held-to-maturity or trading, including equity securities with readily determinable fair
values, are classified as "available for sale" and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. Purchase
premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the
terms of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade
date and are determined using the specific identification method.

The Company follows accounting guidance related to recognition and presentation of other-
than-temporary impairments (OTTI), which is primarily codified in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 320-10. This guidance amended the recognition guidance for OTTI of debt
securities and expanded the financial statement disclosures for OTTI on debt and equity securi-
ties. The guidance replaced the "intent and ability" indication by specifying that (a) if a
corporation does not have the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b) it is more
likely than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery, the security would
not be considered other-than-temporarily impaired unless there is a credit loss. When an entity
does not intend to sell the security and it is more likely than not, the entity will not have to sell
the security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the credit component of an OTTI
of a debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income. For
held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of OTTI recorded in other comprehensive income
for the noncredit portion of a previous OTTI should be amortized prospectively over the
remaining life of the security on the basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the
security.

In accordance with OTTI guidance, the Company's Consolidated Statement of Income would
reflect, if applicable, the full impairment (that is, the difference between the security's amortized
cost basis and fair value) on debt securities that the Company intends to sell or would more
likely than not be required to sell before the expected recovery of the amortized cost basis. For
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity debt securities that management has no intent to sell and
believes that more likely than not it will not be required to sell prior to recovery, only the credit
loss component of the impairment would be recognized in earnings, while the fair value loss
would be recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The credit loss component
recognized in earnings is identified as the amount of principal cash flows not expected to be
received over the remaining term of the security as projected based on cash flow projections.

For equity securities, when the Company has decided to sell an impaired available-for-sale

security and the entity does not expect the fair value of the security to fully recover before the
expected time of sale, the security is deemed other-than-temporarily impaired in the period in
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Securities (Continued)

which the decision to sell is made. The Company recognizes an impairment loss when the
impairment is deemed other-than-temporary even if a decision to sell has not been made.

Federal Reserve Bank Stock and Other Investments

Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) and Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock are carried at cost
and can only be sold back to the FRB and FHLB or other member banks at par value.
Dividends on FRB and FHLB are included in interest income in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Loans Held-for-Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market, if any, are carried at the lower
of cost or estimated fair value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized
through a valuation allowance by charges to earnings. There were no loans held-for-sale at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Loans

The Bank grants loans to customers based on source of repayment, credit history, availability of
collateral and other considerations. Loans that management has the ability and intent to hold
for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding
principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees
or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan
origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an
adjustment of the related loan interest income in accordance with the effective interest method.

The accrual of interest on loans outstanding is discontinued at the time collection of principal or
interest is considered doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans placed on non-
accrual or charged-off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is
accounted for on the cash basis or cost recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual
status, if ever. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Bank's allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred
through a provision for loan losses that reduces earnings. Management charges loan losses
against the allowance (charge-offs) when loan impairment is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged-off through the allowance, if any, are credited back to the
allowance.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

An allowance is estimated by management, at least quarterly, based upon periodic
consideration of loan impairment for specifically identified loans and groups of loans with similar
risk characteristics. Management considers historical experience, the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value
of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic and other environmental conditions.
Determination of loan impairment is inherently subjective and requires judgments and estimates
that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available due to
changing circumstances and/or the passage of time.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that
scheduled payments of principal or interest will not be collected when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors management considers to determine
impairment of a specific loan or relationship include payment status, collateral value and the
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not considered
impaired.

Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-
by-case basis and takes all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower under
consideration, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior
payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.
Impairment is measured on a by-loan basis for significant credits by either the present value of
expected future cash flows, the loan's obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral,
if the loan is collateral dependent, and in aggregate for groups of smaller balance, relatively
homogenous loans with similar risk characteristics. Impairment determined in aggregate for
groups of loans is not specific to individually identifiable loans or relationships.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Loans whose terms are modified are classified as troubled debt restructurings if the Company
grants such borrowers concessions and it is deemed that those borrowers are experiencing
financial difficulty. Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring may be modified by
means of extending the maturity date of the loan, reducing the interest rate of the loan to a rate
which is below market, a combination of rate adjustments and maturity extensions, or by other
means including covenant modifications, forbearances or other concessions.

The Company does not accrue interest on loans that were non-accrual prior to the troubled debt
restructuring until they have performed in accordance with their restructured terms for a
reasonable period of at least six months and Management is reasonably assured of future
performance and ultimate collectibility. The Company continues to accrue interest on troubled
debt restructurings which were performing in accordance with their terms prior to the restructure
and continue to perform in accordance with their restructured terms. When doubt exists about
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Troubled Debt Restructurings (Continued)

the ultimate collectibility of principal and interest, the troubled debt restructuring remains on non-
accrual status and payments received are applied to reduce principal to the extent necessary to
eliminate such doubt. The determination of accrual status is judgmental and is based on facts
and circumstances related to each troubled debt restructuring. Each of these loans is individ-
ually evaluated for impairment, and a specific reserve is recorded based upon probable losses
taking into consideration the related collateral, modified loan terms and cash flow. Management
evaluates the allowance for loan losses with respect to troubled debt restructures under the
same policy and guidelines as all other performing loans.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been
surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets
have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that
constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets,
and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Credit-Related Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into commitments to extend credit, including
commitments under commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosures, if any, are held for sale and are initially
recorded at the lower of the loan investment carrying value or the estimated fair value of the
assets acquired less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a cost basis for the
foreclosed assets. Excesses of the loan investment carrying value over the cost basis of the
foreclosed assets are charged against the allowance. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations
are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of the cost
basis or estimated fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and
changes in the valuation allowance are grouped and netted in the consolidated financial
statements. Foreclosed assets held at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $60,065 and $-0-,
respectively.

Premises and Equipment
Acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the
asset, except for assets under capital lease obligations, which are depreciated over the shorter

of the non-cancelable lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset, under the straight-line
method. Maintenance, repairs, renewals and betterments that do not significantly extend the
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Premises and Equipment (Continued)

useful life of the asset are recognized as expense when incurred. Book value (cost less
accumulated depreciation at time of disposal) of asset disposals are removed from the accounts
and the difference between the proceeds, if any, and the book value are netted and reported as
gain or loss in earnings for the corresponding period.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the branch acquired over the fair value of the net
assets acquired. The Company does not amortize goodwill. Goodwill has been assigned to the
banking operations reporting unit and is tested for impairment at least annually, but may be
tested for impairment if any event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of the banking operations reporting unit below its carrying value. Any
impairment loss is to be recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income. There were no
impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Other Intangible Asset

The core deposit intangible is amortized to expense over its estimated useful life on the straight-
line method. The remaining useful life and potential impairment of this core deposit intangible
will be evaluated annually.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are recognized when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $97,215 and $141,520, respectively.

Concentrations

The Bank's deposit and lending activities are concentrated in the West Texas area and in oil
and gas production and related service businesses, other commercial operations, commercial
real estate and agriculture.

The ability of their debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon cash flows from business
operations, including real estate, and other sources which are dependent upon general
economic conditions in this area and in these industries. The Bank does not have significant
concentrations of credit risk to any one customer other than the U.S. government or its agencies
(including guaranties of borrower credits by these agencies).

The Bank holds its primary liquid assets in the form of demand deposits in other commercial
banks and the Federal Reserve Bank. A significant amount exceeds FDIC insurance.
Management monitors the safety and soundness of its correspondents and does not believe
these institutions present a significant credit risk.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company maintains deposits with other financial institutions in amounts that exceed federal
deposit insurance coverage. Management regularly evaluates the credit risk associated with
the counterparties to these transactions and believes that the Company is not exposed to any
significant credit risks on cash and cash equivalents.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $14,328,350
and $10,024,126, respectively, deposited at Amarillo National Bank of which $250,000 was
insured by FDIC Insurance.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had a money market account of $5,558,449 and
$582,256, respectively, deposited at First National Bank Omaha of which $250,000 was insured
by FDIC insurance.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $987,413 and
$714,587, respectively, deposited at JP Morgan Chase of which $250,000 was insured by FDIC
insurance.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $258,627 and
$191,351, respectively, deposited at Bank of Oklahoma of which $250,000 was insured by FDIC
insurance.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains losses value
December 31, 2015
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government Sponsored Entity
Debt Securities $ 10,499,980 $ 8,260 $ (22,595) $ 10,485,645
State and municipal obligations 1,748,731 101,021 - 1,849,752
U.S. Treasury Securities 17,483,168 12,900 (21,668) 17,474,400
Total available-for-sale $ 29,731,879 $122,181 $ (44,263) $ 29,809,797
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains losses value
December 31, 2014
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government Sponsored Entity
Debt Securities $15509,846 $ - $ (22,431) $15,487,415
State and municipal obligations 2,987,333 171,971 - 3,159,304
U.S. Treasury Securities 7,464,700 4,100 (5,175) 7,463,625
Total available-for-sale $ 25,961,879 $ 176,071 $ (27.606) $26,110,344

During 2015 and 2014, there were no sales of available-for-sale securities.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, LSSBI had pledged securities with carrying values of
approximately $13,446,000 and $17,953,000, respectively, to secure public deposits.

The scheduled maturities of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Amortized Fair

cost value
Due in one year or less $ - % -
Due after one year through five years 28,871,712 28,886,855
Due after five years through ten years 639,059 672,064
Due after ten years 221,108 250,878
Total $ 29,731,879 $ 29,809,797

Temporarily Impaired Securities

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's
investments with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

Total
Fair Fair unrealized
value Losses value Losses losses
December 31, 2015
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government Sponsored
Entity Debt Securities $ 8,467,745 $ 22595 3 - $ - $ 22,595
State and municipal obligations - - - - -
U.S. Treasury Securities 9,984,400 21,668 - - 21,668
Total available-for-sale $ 18452145 $ 44263 $ - $ - $ 44,263
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Temporarily Impaired Securities (Continued)

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months

Total
Fair Fair unrealized
value Losses value Losses losses
December 31, 2014
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government Sponsored
Entity Debt Securities $15487,415 $ 22431 §$§ - $ - $ 22,431
State and municipal obligations - - - - -
U.S. Treasury Securities 2,464,225 5,175 - - 5175
Total available-for-sale $17951640 $ 27606 $ - $ - $ 27,606

Premiums paid for federal agency securities, if any, are not significant and U.S. government
agencies guarantee the contractual cash flows. The unrealized losses on four of the
investments are due to increased market interest rates, not credit quality.

Investment in tax-exempt securities is part of the Company's strategy to manage taxable income
for shareholders. Premiums paid for state and municipal securities, if any, are not significant.

Management analyzed the unrealized losses and considered general market conditions and
other factors in concluding that the unrealized losses were temporary. Due to potential changes
in conditions, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in fair values and managements
assertions will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

Upon acquisition of a security, the Company decides whether it is within the scope of the
accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets or will be evaluated
for impairment under the accounting guidance for investments in debt and equity securities.

The accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets provides
incremental impairment guidance for a subset of the debt securities within the scope of the
guidance for investments in debt and equity securities. For securities where the security is a
beneficial interest in securitized financial assets, the Company uses the beneficial interests in
securitized financial asset impairment model. For securities where the security is not a
beneficial interest in securitized financial assets, the Company uses debt and equity securities
impairment model.

We routinely conduct periodic reviews to identify and evaluate each investment security to
determine whether an OTTI has occurred. Economic models are used to determine whether an
OTTI has occurred on these securities. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no
securities with other-than-temporary impairments.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Real estate - construction $ 53,311,351 $ 44,788,348
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family 39,568,782 31,981,209
Real estate - other 193,452,958 175,640,136

Real estate 286,333,091 252,409,693
Commercial 165,082,264 176,839,648
Agriculture 163,460,835 169,778,139
Consumer 10,822,367 10,713,419
Other 12,069,062 12,355,467

Total loans 637,767,619 622,096,366
Less: allowance for loan losses 7,164,209 7,636,293
Loans receivable, net $ 630,603.410 $ 614,460,073
Deferred loan fees included in total loans $ 130317 $ 127,509

Commercial and agricultural operating loans are underwritten based on the Company’s
examination of current and projected cash flows to determine the ability of the borrower to repay
their obligations as agreed. This underwriting includes the evaluation of cash flows of the
borrower, underlying collateral, if applicable, and the borrower’s ability to manage its business
activities. The cash flows of borrowers and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in
value after the initial evaluation. A first priority lien on the general assets of the business
normally secures these types of loans. Loan-to-value limits vary and are dependent upon the
nature and type of the underlying collateral and the financial strength of the borrower. Crop and
hail insurance is required for most agricultural borrowers. Loans are generally guaranteed by
the principal(s). The Company’s commercial and agricultural operating lending is primarily in its
primary market area.

Commercial and agricultural real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and
processes similar to commercial and agricultural operating loans, in addition to those unique to
real estate loans. These loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans
secured by real estate. Commercial and agricultural real estate lending typically involves higher
loan principal amounts, and the repayment of these loans is generally dependent on the
successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on the
property securing the loan. The loan-to-value ratio is generally 85% of the lower of cost or value
of the assets. Appraisals on properties securing these loans are performed by fee appraisers
approved by the Board of Directors or, depending on loan size, may be performed by internal
evaluations by qualified individuals not involved in the loan approval process. Because
payments on commercial and agricultural real estate loans are often dependent on the
successful operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject
to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. Management monitors and
evaluates commercial and agricultural real estate loans based on collateral and risk-rating
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

criteria. The Company typically requires guarantees on these loans. The Company’s com-
mercial and agricultural real estate loans are secured primarily by properties located in its
primary market area.

Construction loans are underwritten utilizing independent appraisals, sensitivity analysis of
absorption, vacancy and lease rates and financial analysis of the developers and property
owners. Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and value associated
with the complete project. These estimates may be inaccurate. Construction loans often
involve the disbursement of funds with repayment substantially dependent on the success of the
ultimate project. These loans are closely monitored by on-site inspections and are considered
to have higher risks than other real estate loans due to their ultimate repayment being sensitive
to interest rate changes, general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing.
The Company typically requires guarantees on these loans. The Company’s construction loans
are secured primarily by properties located in its primary market area.

The Company originates 1-4 family real estate and consumer loans utilizing credit reports to
supplement the underwriting process. Properties securing 1-4 family real estate loans are
appraised by either internal evaluations or fee appraisers, both of which are independent of the
loan origination function and have been approved by the Board of Directors. The loan-to-value
ratios normally do not exceed 90%. The underwriting standards for consumer loans include a
determination of the applicant’s payment history on other debts and an assessment of their
ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan. To monitor and
manage loan risk, policies and procedures are developed and modified, as needed by
management. This activity, coupled with smaller loan amounts that are spread across many
individual borrowers, minimizes risk. Additionally, market conditions are reviewed by manage-
ment on a regular basis. The Company’'s 1-4 family real estate is secured primarily by
properties located in its primary market area.

The Company uses the services of a third party to perform a loan review on an annual basis.
Results of these reviews are presented to management and the audit committee. The loan
review process complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions
made by lenders and credit personnel, as well as the Company’s policies and procedures.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was
as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year $ 7,636,293 $ 6,945,958
Provision for loan losses 3,500,000 910,004
Charge-offs (4,078,347) (293,665)
Recoveries 106,263 73,996
Balance at end of year $ 7,164,209 $§ 7,636,293
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Specific changes in the allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Allowance for Loan Losses
Balance, beginning
Provision for loan losses
Recoveries of loans charge-off
Loans charged-off
Balance, ending

Ending balance:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Ending balance:
Collectively evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance

December 31, 2014

Allowance for Loan Losses
Balance, beginning
Provision for loan losses
Recoveries of loans charge-off
Loans charged-off
Balance, ending

Ending balance:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Ending balance:
Collectively evaluated
for impairment
Ending balance

December 31, 2015
Loans
Ending balance:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Ending balance:
Collectively evaluated
tor impairment

Ending balance

December 31, 2014
Loans
Ending balance:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Ending balance:
Collectively evaluated
tor impairment

Ending balance

Real Estate
Real Estate 1-4 Family and Real Estate

Construction _Multi-Family Other Commercial Agriculture Consumer Other Total
$ 278725 $ 112,253 §$ 962,936 $ 1,732,675 $ 4,190,034 $ 76,363 $ 283,307 $ 7,636,293
108,143 58,255 1,138,919 705,696 1,390,206 85,490 13,291 3,500,000
- - - 54,242 - 52,021 - 106,263
- - (1,000,000) (120,543) (2,832,766) (125,038) - (4,078,347)
$ 386,868 $ 170,508 $ 1,101,855 $§ 2,372,070 $ 2,747,474 $ 88,836 $§ 296,598 $ 7,164,209
$ -8 -3 64,122 $ 222,230 $ 207,093 $ 17,305 $ -3 510,750
386,868 170,508 1,037,733 2,149,840 2,540,381 71,531 296,598 6,653,459
$ 386,868 $ 170,508 $ 1,101,855 $ 2,372,070 $ 2,747,474 $ 88,836 $§ 296,598 § 7,164,209
$ 360495 $ 205600 $ 1,145388 $ 2,642,243 $ 1831649 $ 262,557 $ 498,026 $ 6,945958
(81,770) (93,347) (182,452) (754,523) 2,358,385 (121,570) (214,719) 910,004
- - - 71,198 - 2,798 - 73,996
- - - (226,243) - (67,422) - (293,665)
$ 278725 $ 112,253 § 962,936 $§ 1,732,675 $ 4,190,034 $ 76,363 $§ 283,307 $ 7,636,293
$ -8 -3 - $ 59,205 $ 850,000 $ 17,722 $ - $ 926,927
278,725 112,253 962,936 1,673,470 3,340,034 58,641 283,307 6,709,366
$ 278,725 $ 112,253 $ 962,936 § 1732675 $ 4,190,034 $ 76,363 $§ 283,307 $ 7,636,293
$ -8 - $ 3,142,108 $ 383249 $ 1,639,737 $ 46,362 $ - $ 5211456
53.311,351 39,568,782 190,310,849 164,699,015 161,821,098 10,776,005 12,069,063 632,556,163
$ 53,311,351 $ 39,568,782 $ 193,452,957 $ 165,082,264 $ 163,460,835 $ 10,822,367 $ 12,069,063 $ 637,767,619
$ -3 - 8 839,425 §$ 111,605 $§ 1,511,447 $ 44,891 $ - $ 2,507,368
44,788,348 31,981,209 174,800,711 176,728,043 168,266,692 10,668,528 12,355,467 619,588,998
$ 44,788,348 $ 31,981,209 § 175,640,136 $ 176,839,648 $ 169,778,139 $ 10,713,419 §$ 12,355,467 $ 622,096,366
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Credit Quality Indicators. As part of the ongoing monitoring of the credit quality of the
Company’s loan portfolio, management tracks certain credit quality indicators including trends
related to (i) the risk ratings of construction, commercial and agricultural real estate loans and
commercial and agricultural operating loans, (ii) the level of classified loans, (iii) net charge-offs,
(iv) non-performing loans and (v) the general economic conditions in our market area. Informa-
tion for all credit quality indicators is updated annually.

The Company utilizes a risk rating matrix to assign risk ratings to each of its construction,
commercial and agricultural loans. Loans are rated on a scale of 1 to 7. A description of the
general characteristics of the 7 risk ratings is as follows:

Ratings 1, 2, and 3 — These ratings include loans of average to excellent credit quality
borrowers. These borrowers generally have significant capital strength, moderate
leverage and stable earnings and growth commensurate to their relative risk rating.

Rating 4 — This rating includes loans on management’s "pass watch list" and is intended
to be utilized for pass rated borrowers where credit quality has begun to show signs of
financial weakness or is a type of loan that has more inherent risk and, therefore,
requires management’s heightened attention.

Rating 5 — This rating is for "Special Mention" in accordance with regulatory guidelines.
This rating is intended to be temporary and includes loans to borrowers whose potential
credit weaknesses could cause credit quality to deteriorate further unless active
measures are taken to correct the situation.

Rating 6 — This rating for "Substandard" loans has defined weaknesses which make
payment default or principal exposure likely, but not yet certain. Such loans are apt to
be dependent upon collateral liquidation, a secondary source of repayment or an event
outside of the normal course of business.

Rating 61 — This rating includes "Substandard-Impaired" loans, in accordance with
regulatory guidelines, that may not be collected in full according to the terms of the Note.
This rating includes: (i) loans where payments are significantly past due, (ii) loans not
fully secured, or (iii) loans where a specific valuation allowance may be necessary.

Rating 7 — This rating includes loans where repayment is "doubtful." Weaknesses in the
credit are significant and could impede collection. The probability of loss is very high,
but, because of certain important and reasonably specific pending factors which may
work to the advantage and strengthening of the asset, its classification as an estimated
loss is deferred until its more exact status may be determined.
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The credit risk profile by internally assigned ratings at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

Real Estate
Real Estate 1-4 family Real Estate
Construction & Multifamily Other Commercial Agriculture Consumer Other Total

December 31, 2015

Rating 1 $ - $ 194,900 $ - $ 7,759,621 $ 958,407 $ 818,168 $ 5210 $ 9,736,306
Rating 2 1,023,306 80,919 - 13,609,328 4,092,235 151,772 - 18,957,560
Rating 3 48,628,570 36,442,647 151,503,456 95,469,629 82,535,583 9,736,818 7,846,010 432,162,713
Rating 4 3,659,475 2,043,750 24,846,884 30,032,873 41,980,652 40,199 4,217,842 106,821,675
Rating 41 - 274,361 5,784,397 101,550 18,246,820 - - 24,407,128
Rating 5 - - 1,509,584 14,007,878 1,515,598 - - 17,033,060
Rating 6 - 532,205 6,666,529 3,718,136 12,491,803 29,048 - 23,437,721
Rating 61 - - 3,142,108 383,249 1,639,737 46,362 - 5,211,456
Rating 7 S s ® b = = ~ -
Totals $ 53,311,351 § 39,568,782 $ 193,452,958 $ 165,082,264 $ 163,460,835 $ 10,822,367 $ 12,069,062 $ 637,767,619
December 31, 2014

Rating 1 $ -3 -3 - $ 7,018,616 $ 1,634,101 $ 929,602 $ - $ 9,682,319
Rating 2 1,404,587 214,324 - 12,177,840 7,382,034 4,726 - 21,183,511
Rating 3 39,898,319 29,265,813 145,527,907 136,667,250 103,117,283 9,734,655 8,479,030 472,690,257
Rating 4 3,485,442 2,086,566 21,235,360 10,946,855 30,928,830 (1,853) 3,712,511 72,393,711
Rating 41 - - 161,000 5,341,764 8,090,587 - - 13,593,351
Rating 5 - 55,730 1,526,197 434,322 2,689,350 - - 4,705,599
Rating 6 - 358,776 6,350,247 4,141,396 14,424,507 1,398 163,926 25,440,250
Rating 61 - - 50,000 111,605 1,511,447 44,891 - 1,717,943
Rating 7 3 - 789,425 - - - - 789,425
Totals $ 44,788,348 $ 31,981,209 $ 175,640,136 $ 176,839,648 $ 169,778,139 $ 10,713,419 $ 12,355,467 $ 622,096,366

Impaired Loans

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (FASB
ASC 310-10-35-16), when based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial loans but also
include certain loans modified in troubled debt restructurings where concessions have been
granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include a
reduction in the interest rate on the loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal,
forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection.

The Company shall measure impairment based on the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. Regardless of the measurement method, the Company shall
measure impairment based on the fair value of the collateral when the Company determines
that foreclosure is probable. A loan is collateral dependent if the repayment of the loan is
expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Impaired Loans (Continued)

Since impaired loans have risk characteristics that are unique to an individual borrower, the
Company will apply the measurement methods on a loan-by-loan basis. The Company shall
consider estimated costs to sell, on a discounted basis, in the measure of impairment if those
costs are expected to reduce the cash flows available to repay or otherwise satisfy the loan. If
the measure of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (including
accrued interest, net deferred loan fees or costs, and unamortized premium or discount), the
Company shall recognize an impairment by creating a valuation allowance with a corresponding
charge to bad debt expense or by adjusting an existing valuation allowance for the impaired
loan with a corresponding charge or credit to bad debt expense.

Subsequent to the initial measurement of impairment, if there is a significant change (increase
or decrease) in the amount or timing of an impaired loan’s expected future cash flows or if the
cash flows are significantly different from the cash flows previously projected, the Company
shall recalculate the impairment. When the Company measures impairment based on the
observable market price of the impaired loan or the fair value of an impaired collateral-
dependent loan, the Company shall adjust the valuation allowance if there is a significant
change (increase or decrease) in either of those basis. However, the net carrying amount of the
loan shall at no time exceed the recorded investment in the loan.

Information concerning impaired loans by loan type as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

Unpaid
Contractual Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
December 31, 2015
With no specific reserve recorded:
Real estate - construction $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family - - - - -
Real estate - other 739,336 739,336 - 789,381 -
Commercial 25,427 23,979 - 30,190 -
Agriculture 3,175,530 559,447 - 279,724 -
Consumer 7,919 7,919 - 5,764 -
Other - - - - -
Total loans with no specific reserve $ 3,948,212 $ 1,330,681 $ - $ 1,105,059 §
With an allowance recorded:
Real estate - construction $ - $ - $ - $ - 9 -
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family - - - - -
Real estate - other 3,402,772 2,402,772 64,122 1,201,386 -
Commercial 359,270 359,270 222,230 217,238 -
Agriculture 1,080,290 1,080,290 207,093 1,295,869 -
Consumer 38,443 38,443 17,305 39,863 -
Other - - - - -
Total loans with specific reserve $ 4,880,775 $ 3,880,775 $ 510,750 $ 2,754,356 $ -
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Impaired Loans (Continued)

December 31, 2015 (Continued)

Total

Real estate - construction
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family
Real estate - other
Commercial
Agriculture

" Consumer
Other

Total loans

December 31, 2014

With no specific reserve recorded:
Real estate - construction
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family
Real estate - other
Commercial
Agriculture
Consumer
Other

Total loans with no specific reserve

With an allowance recorded:
Real estate - construction
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family
Real estate - other
Commercial
Agriculture
Consumer
Other

Total loans with specific reserve

Total
Real estate - construction
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family
Real estate - other
Commercial
Agriculture
Consumer
Other

Total loans

There are no significant differences between impaired loans compared to

December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Unpaid

Contractual Average Interest

Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
$ -3 -3 - 8 - $ .
4,142,108 3,142,108 64,122 1,990,767 -
384,697 383,249 222,230 247,428 -
4,255,820 1,639,737 207,093 1,575,593 -
46,362 46,362 17,305 45,627 -
$ 8828987 § 5211456 $ 510,750 $ 3,859,415 $ -
$ -9 -8 -8 -3 -
839,425 839,425 - 479,213 -
36,400 36,400 - 57,368 -
3,609 3,609 - 6,122 -
$§ 879434 $§ 879434 $ - $ 542,703 $ =
$ -3 - $ - $ -9 -
75,205 75,205 59,205 218,251 -
1,511,447 1,511,447 850,000 755,724 -
41,282 41,282 17,722 47,226 -
$ 1627934 $ 1627934 $ 926927 $ 1,021,201 $ &
$ - $ -3 - 8 -3 -
839,425 839,425 - 479,213 -
111,605 111,605 59,205 275,619 -
1,511,447 1,511,447 850,000 755,724 -
44,891 44,891 17,722 53,348 -
$ 2,507,368 $ 2,507,368 $ 926,927 $ 1,563,904 $ -
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Troubled Debt Restructurings

The restructuring of a loan is considered a "troubled debt restructuring” (TDR) if both (i) the
borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and (ii) the creditor has granted a concession.
Concession may include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal
forgiveness, restructuring amortization schedules, covenant modifications and other actions
intended to minimize potential losses. Effective for 2012, the Company adopted the provisions
of FASB ASC 310-40, Troubled Debt Restructuring by Creditors.

The Company does not accrue interest on loans that were on non-accrual status prior to the
troubled debt restructuring until they have performed in accordance with their restructured terms
for a reasonable period of at least six months and Management is reasonably assured of future
performance and ultimate collectibility. The Company continues to accrue interest on TDRs
which were performing in accordance with their terms prior to the restructure and continue to
perform in accordance with their restructured terms.

The Company had three loans totaling $4,915,837 and one loan totaling $50,000 meeting the
definition of a TDR as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2015
and 2014, balances on accrual status were $3,087,329 and $-0-, respectively.

The Company’s loans that were modified in the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and
considered a troubled debt restructuring are as follows:

Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Outstanding Outstanding
Recorded Recorded

Modifications as of December 31, 2015 Number Investment Investment
Real Estate - Other 1 S 1,802,770 S 1,802,770
Agriculture 1 3,087,329 3,087,329
Consumer 1 25,738 25,738
Totals 3 S 4,915,837 S 4,915,837
Modifications as of December 31, 2014
Real Estate - Other - $ - $
Agriculture - - -
Consumer - - -
Totals - S - S

For the year ended December 31, 2015, one consumer loan totaling $25,738 was modified with
concessions of a lower interest rate and an extension of the loan maturity. In addition, one real
estate loan totaling $1,802,770 and one agriculture loan totaling $3,087,329 were modified with
changes to loan covenants to address collateral deficiencies.

There were no troubled debt restructurings that subsequently defaulted as of December 31,
2015.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were $73,494 and $0, respectively, in specific
reserves for non-accruing TDR loans.

As of December 31, 2015 the Company was committed to lend an additional $128,680 on a
non-impaired troubled debt restructuring. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no
commitments to lend additional funds to loan customers whose terms have been modified in

any trouble debt restructuring.

Analysis of Past Due Loans

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s past due loans are as follows:

Loans Loans Loans Total 90 Days
30-59 Days 60-89 Days > 90 Days Total Loans Total Total Past Due
Past Due Past Due Past Due Past due Current Loans Still Accruing
December 31, 2015
Real estate - construction $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 53,311,351 $ 53,311,351 § -
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family - - - - 39,568,782 39,568,782 -
Real estate - other - - - 193,452,958 193,452,958 -
Commercial 58,442 92,859 44,264 195,565 164,886,699 165,082,264 8,903
Agriculture 174,127 61,821 42,000 277,948 163,182,887 163,460,835 -
Consumer 164,498 69,239 34,476 268,213 10,554,154 10,822,367 22,350
Other 617,056 7,825 - 624,881 11,444,181 12,069,062 -
Total $ 1,014,123 $ 231,744 $ 120,740 $ 1,366,607 $ 636,401,012 $ 637,767,619 $ 31,253
December 31, 2014

Real estate - construction $ -3 - 8 - $ - $ 44788348 $ 44,788,348 $ -
Real estate - 1-4 family and multi-family 9,908 - - 9,908 31,971,301 31,981,209 -
Real estate - other - - - 175,640,136 175,640,136 -
Commercial - - - - 176,839,648 176,839,648 -

Agriculture 174,798 - - 174,798 169,603,341 169,778,139

Consumer 61,815 11,029 4,681 77,525 10,635,894 10,713,419
Other 60,001 12,696 8 72,705 12,282,762 12,355,467 -
Total $ 306522 $§ 23725 $ 4,689 $ 334936 $ 621,761,430 $ 622,096,366 $ #

There are no other known problem loans that cause management to have serious doubts as to
the ability of such borrowers to comply with the present loan repayment terms.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no material commitments to lend additional funds to
customers whose loans were classified as impaired.

Related Party Loans

Loans are made in the normal course of business to certain employees, directors and executive
officers of the Company and to their affiliates. The terms of these loans, including interest rates
and collateral, are similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions with others and do not
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Related Party Loans (Continued)

involve more than a normal risk of collectibility. Loan transactions with related parties as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 and were as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year $ 21,828,606 $ 20,283,496
New loans 14,266,763 4,849,433
Repayments (11,124,662) (3,304,323)
Balance at end of year $ 24,970,707 $ 21,828,606

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31, 2015 and 2014 follows:

2015 2014

Land and improvements $ 1,419,071 $ 1,414,843
Buildings and improvements 7,839,718 7,842,192
Furniture, equipment and software 2,558,234 2,345,589
Building and equipment under capital lease 1,078,970 79,793

12,895,993 11,682,417
Less: Accumulated depreciation 3,379,379 2,792,232
Total 9,516,614 $ 8.890,185

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $713,501
and $669,947, respectively, and include $47,675 of capital asset amortization for the year
ended December 31, 2015, and $15,959 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A summary of intangible assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 follows:

2015 2014
Brownfield core deposit intangible $ 3,722,630 $ 3,722,630
Less: Accumulated amortization 2,816,250 2,427,802
Amortizable intangible assets, net 906,380 1,294,828
Goodwill 7,832,067 7,832,067
Intangible assets, net $ 8738447 $ 9,126,895

30



LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Management believes the remaining useful life of the Brownfield core deposit intangible is
appropriate and does not believe the intangible assets were impaired at December 31, 2015.

NOTE 7 - TIME DEPOSITS

A summary of time deposits at December 31, 2015 and 2014 follows:

2015 201

Brokered deposits of $250,000 or more $ - $ -
Other deposits of $250,000 or more 145,817,339 113,465,186

Total denominations of $250,000 or more 145,817,339 113,465,186
Brokered deposits less than $250,000 23,882,425 14,699,346
Other deposits less than $250,000 112,237,605 99,876,949

Total denominations less than $250,000 136,120,030 114,576,295
Total time deposits $ 281,937,369 $ 228,041,481
Time deposit scheduled maturities as of December 31, 2015 follows:

2016 $ 238,172,669

2017 38,662,348

2018 2,071,019

2019 2,987,466

2020 43,867

281,937,369

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, approximately $220,000 and $341,000, respectively, of
deposit overdrafts were reclassified as loan balances.

NOTE 8 - NOTES PAYABLE

In October 2008, LSSBI entered into a $7,000,000 revolving line of credit which carried a
variable interest rate (prime plus 25 basis points) and required interest to be paid quarterly
beginning January 1, 2009. In December 2009, LSSBI amended and renewed the $7,000,000
revolving line of credit and also obtained an additional $2,500,000 multiple advance term note
with a variable interest rate (prime plus 125 basis points). In April 2011, LSSBI amended and
renewed both the multiple advance term note and the revolving line of credit note. The multiple
advance term note was renewed with a principal balance of $7,760,000, and the revolving line
of credit note was amended to allow a revolving borrowing capacity of $1,000,000. In April
2012, LSSBI amended and renewed both the multiple advance term note and the revolving line
of credit note. The multiple advance term note was renewed into a term note with a principal
balance of $7,760,000, and the revolving line of credit note was amended to allow a revolving
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borrowing capacity of $2,500,000. Both notes carried a variable interest rate on the unpaid
principal balance (prime rate plus 100 basis points). Scheduled quarterly principal payments of
$325,000 were paid in July 2012, October 2012, and January 2013. In April 2013, LSSBI made
a principal payment totaling $1,300,000 reducing the outstanding principal balance of the term
note to $5,485,000. In April 2013, LSSBI amended and renewed both the term note with a
principal balance of $5,485,000 and the $2,500,000 revolving line of credit. Both notes carried a
variable interest rate (prime plus 75 basis points) with interest paid quarterly on July 1, 2013,
October 1, 2013, January 1, 2014, and April 1, 2014. In April 2014, LSSBI made a principal
payment totaling $1,300,000 reducing the outstanding principal balance of the term note to
$4,185,000. In April 2014, LSSBI amended and renewed both the term note and the revolving
line of credit. The interest rate on both facilities remained unchanged (prime plus 75 basis
points) with interest payments due quarterly on July 1, 2014, October 1, 2014, January 1, 2015
and April 1, 2015. A principal payment on the term note of $325,000 was due on April 1, 2015.
On June 26, 2014, LSSBI drew $2,500,000 on the revolving line of credit. Then on October 7,
2014, this borrowing was repaid. The unpaid principal of both notes, $4,185,000 for the term
note and $-0- for the revolving facility, was payable April 9, 2015. In April 2015, LSSBI made a
principal payment totaling $1,300,000 reducing the outstanding principal balance of the term
note to $2,885,000. In April 2015, LSSBI amended and renewed both the term note and the
revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit amount was increased to a maximum of
$6,500,000. The interest rate on both facilities was lowered to prime plus 25 basis points, with
interest payments due quarterly on July 1, 2015, October 1, 2015, January 1, 2016 and April 1,
2016. A principal payment on the term note of $962,000 is due on or before April 9, 2016. The
unpaid principal on both notes is payable April 9, 2016. LSSBI intends to retire the term note on
or before April 9, 2016, and renew the revolving line of credit facility. All Bank stock collateral-
izes these notes. The Company is required to meet various covenants under the revolving
amended credit agreement.

NOTE 9 - OTHER BORROWINGS

In June 2010, the Bank was approved by the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) for blanket lien
collateral status. At December 31, 2015, the collateral status was approximately $167,731,000.
The Bank established this line of credit with the FHLB to provide liquidity and meet pledging
requirements for public entities that are required to have securities pledged to secure uninsured
deposits. All loan assets, certain investment securities and related rights of the Bank are used
for collateral. FHLB advances are considered short-term, overnight borrowings and used to
control liquidity as needed. At December 31, 2015, the Bank has issued custodial letters of
credit of $56,332,000 and has settled advances of $-0-. Total funds available under the blanket
lien collateral status were approximately $111,399,000 under this agreement.

In May 2011, the Bank entered into a secured and unsecured borrowing agreement that allowed
for the borrowing of federal funds up to $5,000,000 unsecured, with any borrowings in excess to
be secured. At December 31, 2015, there were no borrowings outstanding under this
agreement.

32



LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 10 - LEASES

The Bank leases certain facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Op-
erating lease rent expense was $124,918 and $16,977 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. There
were no noncancelable operating leases for future years at December 31, 2015.

The Company entered into a long-term capital lease for its new Midland banking facilities in
October of 2015. The lease arrangement requires monthly payments, including estimated
executory costs of $3,000 per month, for a term of 111 months ending December 31, 2024. The
following schedule recaps the future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2015. The
interest rate related to the lease obligation is 11.91% and the maturity date is December 31,
2024.

Minimum Lease Payments

2016 $ 199,730
2017 203,052
2018 206,373
2019 209,695
2020 213,016
Thereafter through December 2024 885,279
Total minimum lease payments 1,917,144
Less: Amount representing executory costs (324,000)
Less: Amount representing interest (632,486)
Present Value of minimum lease payments $ 960,658

The Company also acquired office equipment under capital leases. Future minimum payments
under the leases as of December 31, 2015, follow:

Minimum Lease Payments

2016 $ 20,451
2017 18,103
2018 6,558
2019 6,305
Total minimum lease payments 51,412
Less: Amount representing interest (4,521)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 46,891

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Various legal claims arise from time-to-time in the normal course of business that, in manage-
ment's opinion, will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 12 - MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's and Bank's
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding
companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the
Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following
table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as
defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, that the Company and the Bank meet all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank was categorized as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an
institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios
as set forth in the following tables. At December 31, 2015, there are no conditions or events
that management believes have changed the Bank's category. The Company's and the Bank's
actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are also presented in the
table (in thousands).

Minimum
to be well capitalized
Minimum under prompt corrective
Actual capital requirement action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2015
Total Risk-Based Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
LSSBI $ 90,210 12.9% $ 55,862 >8.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 92,803 13.3% 55,861 >8.0% $ 69,826 > 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
LSSBI $ 83,046 11.9% $ 41,896 >6.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 85,639 12.3% 41,896 >6.0% $ 55,861 > 8%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
LSSBI $ 83,046 11.9% $ 31,422 >4.5% N/A N/A
The Bank 85,639 12.3% 31,422 >4.5% $ 45,387 >6.5%
Tier | Capital (to Adjusted Average Assets):
LSSBI $ 83,046 10.7% $ 30,984 >4.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 85,639 11.1% 30,984 >4.0% $ 38,730 > 5%
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NOTE 12 - MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Minimum

to be well capitalized
Minimum under prompt corrective
Actual capital requirement action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2014
Total Risk-Based Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
LSSBI $ 85713 12.9% $ 53,093 >8.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 89,686 13.5% 53,093 >8.0% $ 66,366 > 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
LSSBI $ 78,077 11.8% $ 26,547 >4.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 82,050 12.4% 26,546 >4.0% $ 39,819 > 6%
Tier | Capital (to Adjusted Average Assets):
LSSBI $ 78,077 10.8% $ 28,899 >4.0% N/A N/A
The Bank 82,050 11.4% 28,899 >4.0% $ 36,124 > 5%

State banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid by the Bank to LSSBI.
Dividends paid by the Bank would be prohibited if the effect of the dividends would cause the
Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements.

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk to meet the financing needs of its customers, through the use of
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest-rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the consolidated balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect
the extent of the Company's involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance
sheet instruments.

The following table summarizes the Company's off-balance-sheet financial instruments as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Unfunded lines of credit $ 166,669,995 $ 143,213,179
Less: Participations on unfunded lines of credit 31,167,655 27,221,757
Unfunded lines of credit, net $ 135,502,340 $ 115,991,422
Commercial and standby letters of credit $ 2051579 $ 1.910,126
Commercial and standby letters of credit $ 2051579 $ 1910,126
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NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK (CONTINUED)

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Such commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of
the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each
customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on managements' credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, single and multi-family residences, property and equipment and income-producing
commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The Company's policies generally require that letter
of credit arrangements contain security and debt covenants similar to those contained in loan
arrangements. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon
extension of credit, is based on managements' credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral
held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, single and multi-family residences,
property and equipment and income-producing commercial properties. In the event the
customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party,
the Company would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of
future payments the Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual
amount shown in the table above. If the commitment is funded, the Company would be entitled
to seek recovery from the customer. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no amounts have
been recorded as liabilities for the Company’s potential obligations under these guarantees.

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
401(k) Plan

LSSBI established the Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 401(k) Plan (the Plan)
effective October 1, 2007. Company employees that have attained the age of 21 and provided
three months of service are eligible to participate and may enter the Plan on the immediately
following or coincident January 1 or July 1. Employees may contribute to the Plan through
salary deferrals and rollovers from other qualified plans; the Company may make matching
and/or discretionary contributions. Employees immediately vest 100% in all contributions to the
Plan and related earnings thereon.

The Company recognized $21,678 and $21,300 of the Plan administrative expenses in 2015

and 2014, respectively. The Company contributions to the Plan were $297,029 and $263,788 in
2015 and 2014, respectively.
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NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
ESOP

LSSBI established the Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries Employee Stock
Ownership Plan and Trust (ESOP) effective November 1, 2007. Company employees that have
attained the age of 21 and provided three months of service are eligible to participate and may
enter the ESOP on the immediately following or coincident January 1 or July 1. The ESOP is
noncontributory, except for rollovers from other qualified plans, and is funded through dis-
cretionary employer contributions, if any, annually. Employees must complete 1,000 hours of
service during a calendar year to be eligible for allocation of employer contributions in that year.
Participants immediately vest 100% in all contributions to the ESOP and related earnings
thereon, including stock appreciation and dividends on shares of allocated stock.

The ESOP is not leveraged, but there are plan provisions that allow the Company to borrow to
acquire shares of LSSBI stock.

ESOP participants have a put option whereby LSSBI must settle any stock benefits under the
ESOP by providing cash to the participant in exchange for the stock distributed. The put option
is exercisable for 60 days following distribution of stock to the participant or beneficiary and for
an additional 60 days immediately following the completion of the next stock valuation that will
apply in the plan year following the plan year of distribution. LSSBI is obligated to repurchase
allocated shares, at fair market value as determined by independent appraisal, from participants
that (a) elect to diversify holdings as they approach retirement, (b) retire or (c) are vested in all
or a portion of their LSSBI stock in the ESOP and terminate employment. The ESOP may
assume LSSBI's rights and obligations at the time the put option is exercised, but under no
circumstances may the put option bind the ESOP or related trust.

Upon a change of control in the Company, as defined, participant protections and rights related
to the put option and certain additional protections are effective, including termination of the
ESOP not later than the date of the change of control with distributions to follow shortly
thereafter, suspension of annual service or continuing employment requirements, participant
option to receive a lump sum payment (elimination of the Company’s option to pay distributions
over a five-year period), participant voting rights on all matters submitted to shareholders and
valuation of shares that is no more than six months old.

Certain officers of the Company are trustees of the ESOP.
The Company recognized $7,905 and $7,730 of ESOP administrative expenses in 2015 and

2014, respectively. Company contributions to the ESOP were $30,300 and $50,000 for Decem-
ber 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Employee Health Benefits

The Company also sponsors health, dental and vision plans, which provide medical,
prescription drug, dental and vision benefits. The Company pays a significant portion of the
premiums for health, dental and vision insurance based on the coverage selected by the
employee. Employees are eligible on the first of the month following their employment date.
Premium expense was $937,668 and $874,884 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Employee Life Insurance

The Bank provides life insurance at no cost to the employee in the amount of 1.5 times the
employee's annual salary. Additional life insurance is available for purchase at the employee's
expense. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company carried Key Man Life Insurance on
four employees. Each policy has a value of $2,000,000. Premium expense was $36,219 and
$32,350 for December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Bank also provides short-term and
long-term disability to employees at no cost. Premium expense was $23,478 and $21,773 in
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Share-Based Payments

The Company has a Stock Incentive Plan intended to promote shareholder value by attracting
and retaining directors, executive officers and employees through the granting of options to
acquire equity participation so that their financial interests are aligned with long-term share-
holder value. At December 31, 2015, the aggregate number of shares of stock to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of all options granted under the plan should not exceed 10.0% of the
then outstanding shares of stock.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the year ended
December 31, 2015 is presented in the table and narrative below:

Weighted-Average

Remaining
Weighted-Average Contractual Fair Value at
Shares Exercise Price Term (Years) Grant Date
Outstanding, beginning of year 506,199 $ 11.60
Granted 36,000 -
Exercised 4,000 -
Cancelled - -
Forfeited or expired - -
Outstanding, end of year 538,199 12.00 4.58 $ 1,500,343
Exercisable at end of year 378,199 $ 10.49 2.88 $ 809,606
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The options outstanding at December 31, 2015 had exercise prices ranging from $10.00 to
$17.50. The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and vested stock
options as of December 31, 2015:

Awarded:

March 1, 2008
November 1, 2008
December 30, 2008
December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010
July 1, 2011
December 30, 2011
January 22, 2013
December 31, 2013
April 14, 2014
October 10, 2014
December 31, 2014
December 31, 2015

Exercise

Price

$ 10.00
11.75
11.75
12.00
11.00
11.00
11.00
13.50
13.50
15.25
17.00
17.00
17.50

Number
Outstanding
254,499
15,500
18,500
35,500
25,500

8,000
20,700
30,000
36,000
10,000
10,000
38,000
36,000

Remaining
Contracted

Life (Years)

217
2.84
3.00
4.00
5.01
5.50
6.00
7.07
8.00
8.29
8.78
9.00
10.00

Number
Vested

254,499
15,500
18,500
35,500
25,500

8,000
20,700

The stock option fair values on the grant dates are determined under the Black-Scholes-Merton
option-pricing model (BSM). The following table presents the assumptions used to determine
the fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Weighted average fair value of awards issued

Assumptions:

Expected volatility

Weighted-average volatility

Expected dividends
Expected term (years)

Risk-free rate

2015 2014
$ 4.83 $ 4.59
22.5% 21.5% -25.0%
22.5% 23%
0.00% 0.00%
6.5 6.5
1.93% 1.77% - 1.90%

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company's nonvested shares of common

stock for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Nonvested at January 1, 2015

Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31, 2015

Shares
124,000
36,000

160,000
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NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Share-Based Payments (Continued)

Compensation expense has been recognized over the vesting period based on the fair market
value of the shares on the grant date. Compensation expense of $195,255 and $109,178 was
recognized during years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there was $389,317 and $413,533, respectively. of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over the next
three years. The total fair value at grant date of shares vested as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, was $809,606 and $817,716, respectively.

On April 30, 2009, certain officers of the Bank were awarded 7,000 stock appreciation rights
with the initial value for the grant at $12 per share. The options cliff vest in three years and
expire April 30, 2019. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there was $38,500 and $35,000,
respectively, of compensation expense recognized on these stock appreciation rights.

On December 31, 2009, certain officers of the Bank were awarded 4,000 stock appreciation
rights with the initial value for the grant at $12 per share. Of the total 4,000 rights, 3,000 were
awarded in consideration of the termination of stock option awards which are included in the
forfeited March 1, 2008, stock options. The stock appreciation rights were fully vested on
March 1, 2011, with an expiration date of March 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
there was $22,000 and $20,000, respectively, of compensation expense recognized on these
stock appreciation rights.

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into transactions with related parties,
including its employee, officers and directors. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, outstanding
loans, either directly or indirectly, to this group aggregated $24,970,707 and $21,828,606,
respectively. Unused lines of credit to directors were $3,976,610 and $4,208,314, which is net
of participations of $2,645,585 and $4,195,045 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
There were no charge-offs related to these loans in 2015 and 2014 and advance and repayment
activity was routine.

Related party deposits, including officers and directors, were $22,601,128 and $34,452,286 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Determination of Fair Value

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets
and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. In accordance with the Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures topic of FASB ASC, the fair value of a financial instrument is the
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NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Determination of Fair Value (Continued)

price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best
determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no
quoted market prices for the Company's various financial instruments. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on
exit price in an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been
a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in
valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such
instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at the
measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances
and requires the use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the
range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups its financial assets and financial
liabilities generally measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the
assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair
value.

Level 1 — Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and
liabilities generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange
market. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and
liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which
determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
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NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued)

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value
disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The carrying amounts approximate fair value.

Available-for-Sale Securities — Fair value is based on quoted market price, if available. If a
quoted market price is not available, the quoted prices for identical or similar assets are used.
The fair value of securities is reported in Note 3. Available-for-sale securities will be measured
and reported at fair value on a recurring basis in periods subsequent to initial recognition.

Loans — Specifically identified impaired loans are included in these financial statements at the
estimated fair value of the underlying collateral less cost to sell. Collateral values are estimated
using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data or Level 3 inputs based on customized
discounting criteria. Management discounts the future cash flows of loans that are not
specifically identified as impaired at current rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings for comparable maturities and then deducts ALLL general
reserves to estimate fair value on these loans. The sum of these values, for specifically
identified impaired loans and loans that are not specifically identified as impaired, would not
vary materially from the fair value of the loan portfolio as a whole and is the value reported
below.

Federal Reserve Bank Stock and Other Investments — These subscriptions are restricted and
can only be redeemed by withdrawal of the Bank's membership, carrying amounts represent
amounts that would be received upon redemption and, therefore, approximate fair value.

Deposit Liabilities — The carrying amounts of demand deposits approximate fair value. The
carrying amounts of variable-rate time deposits approximate fair value. Fair values for fixed-rate
time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates
currently offered on time deposits with comparable maturities.

Notes Payable and Other Borrowings — Due to the variable rates on these notes, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value.

Accrued Interest — The carrying amounts approximate fair value.

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments. These financial instruments have contractual interest rates at
or above current market rates and the deferred income amounts arising from unrecognized
financial instruments are not significant. Therefore, no market value disclosure is provided for
these items.
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NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The estimated fair values, and related carrying or notional amounts, of the Company's financial
instruments are as follows:

Fair Value 2015 2014
Hierarchy Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Level Amount Value Amount Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents Level 1 $ 94,448,118 $ 94,448,118 $ 82,393,594 $ 82,393,594
Available-for-sale securities See table below 29,809,797 29,809,797 26,110,344 26,110,344
Accrued interest receivable Level 1 6,150,110 6,150,110 6,350,347 6,350,347
Loans, net Level 2 630,603,410 628,795,410 614,460,073 615,730,073
Federal Reserve Bank Stock
and other investments Level 2 2,526,750 2,526,750 2,453,650 2,453,650
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits Level 2 $ 686,843,354 $ 686,857,354 $ 658,343,360 $ 658,536,360
Notes payable Level 2 2,885,000 2,885,000 4,185,000 4,185,000
Accrued interest payable Level 1 354,869 354,869 204,223 204,223
Capital Lease Obligation Level 2 1,007,549 1,007,549 41,218 41,218

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Total
Assets/Liabilities Inputs Inputs Carrying
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
December 31, 2015
Available-for-sale securities
U.S Government Sponsored Entity
Debt Securities $ - $ 10,485,645 $ - $ 10,485,645
State and municipal obligations - 1,849,752 - 1,849,752
U.S. Treasury Securities - 17,474,400 - 17,474,400
Total available-for-sale $ - $ 29,809,797 $ - $ 29,809,797
December 31, 2014
Available-for-sale securities
U.S Government Sponsored Entity
Debt Securities $ - $ 15,487,415 $ - $ 15,487,415
State and municipal obligations - 3,159,304 - 3,159,304
U.S. Treasury Securities - 7,463,625 - 7,463,625
Total available-for-sale I $ 26,110,344 $ - $ 26,110,344
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Under certain circumstances we make adjustments to fair value for our financial assets and
liabilities although they are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis. The following table
presents the financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheet by caption and by
level in the fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2015 and 2014, for which a nonrecurring
change in fair value has been recorded:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets . Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
December 31, 2015
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 5,211,456 $ 5,211,456
Other repossessed assets - - 60,065 60,065
Total $ = $ = $ 5,271,521 $ 5,271,521
December 31, 2014
Impaired loans $ - $ — $ 2,507,368 $ 2,507,368
Total $ — $ = $ 2,507,368 $ 2,507,368

Impaired Loans — Impaired loans are reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if
repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 2
inputs based on observable market data or Level 3 input based on the discounting of the
collateral. At December 31, 2015, impaired loans with a carrying value of $5,211,456 were
reduced by specific valuation allowance totaling $510,750 resulting in a net fair value of
$4,700,706 based on Level 3 inputs. At December 31, 2014, impaired loans with a carrying
value of $2,507,368 were reduced by specific valuation allowance totaling $926,927 resulting in
a net fair value of $1,580,441 based on Level 3 inputs.

Other Repossessed Assets — Other repossessed assets in the table above were obtained
through foreclosure and recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of
transfer. The carrying value of other repossessed assets is not remeasured to fair value on a
recurring basis but is subject to fair value adjustments when the carrying value exceeds the fair
value less estimated selling costs. Management uses appraisal values based on information
from the National Automobile Dealers Association (NADA) and adjusts for trends observed in
the market and for disposition costs in determining the value. The Company considers these
fair values Level 3.
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis (Continued)

The significant inputs used in the fair value measurements for Level 3 assets measured at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

Range
Valuation Techniques Observable Inputs (Average)
Impaired loans Evaluation of collateral Estimation of value NM*
Other repossessed assets NADA NADA NM*

* Not meaningful. Evaluations of the underlying assets are completed for each impaired loan with a specific
reserve. The types of collateral vary widely and could include accounts receivable, inventory, a variety of
equipment and real estate. Collateral evaluations are reviewed and discounted as appropriate based on
knowledge of the specific type of collateral. In the case of real estate, an independent appraisal may be
obtained. Types of discounts considered included aging of receivables, conditions of the collateral, potential
market for the collateral, and estimated disposal costs. These discounts will vary from loan to loan, thus
providing a range could not be meaningful.

Certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis include foreclosed assets (upon initial recognition or subsequent impairment), nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value in the second step of a goodwill
impairment test, and intangible assets and other nonfinancial long-lived assets measured at fair
value for impairment assessment. There were no nonfinancial asset instruments for which a
nonrecurring change in fair value has been recorded at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

NOTE 17 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-02, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other: Accounting
for Goodwill. These amendments permit a private company to subsequently amortize goodwill
on a straight-line bases over a period of ten years, or less if the Company demonstrates that
another useful life is more appropriate. It also permits a private company to apply a simplified
impairment model to goodwill. The pronouncement is effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2014. The Company has elected to not apply this ASU and will not
amortize their goodwill.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-04, Reclassification of Residential Real
Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure. The objective of this guid-
ance is to clarify when an in-substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, that is, when a
creditor should be considered to have received physical possession of residential real estate
property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan such that the loan receivable should be
derecognized and the real estate property recognized. ASU No. 2014-04 states that an in-
substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considered to have received
physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan,
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NOTE 17 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

upon either (1) the creditor obtaining legal title to the residential real estate property upon
completion of a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveying all interest in the residential real
estate property to the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure or through a similar legal agreement. Additionally, ASU No. 2014-04 requires
interim and annual disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential real estate
property held by the creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans
collateralized by residential real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according
to local requirements of the applicable jurisdiction. ASU No. 2014-04 is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2014. The adoption of ASU No. 20
14-04 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The ASU will supersede most of the existing revenue recognition requirements in U.S. GAAP
and will require entities to recognize revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The new standard also requires significantly expanded disclosures regarding the
qualitative and quantitative information of an entity's nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The pronouncement is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within
that reporting period and is to be applied retrospectively, with early application not permitted.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact the pronouncement will have on the financial
statements and related disclosures.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-01, Simplifying Income Statement
Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Iltems. This ASU eliminates from U.S.
GAAP the concept of extraordinary items. Prior to 2015-01, the Company was required to
separately classify, present, and disclose extraordinary events or transactions — which were
deemed to be both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence — on the income statement,
net of tax, after income from continuing operations. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early
adoption is permitted provided that the guidance is applied from the beginning of the fiscal year
of adoption. ASU 2015-01 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated for inclusion as a subsequent event disclosure only those events that
occurred prior to March 24, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

In January 2016, a dividend of $110,739 ($.02 per share) was declared and paid for shareholders
of record on December 31, 2015.

This information is an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits in bank
Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued interest receivable
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value
Federal Reserve Bank stock and
other investments, at cost
Loans
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

Premises and equipment, net
Intangibles, net

Other assets

Investment in subsidiary

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Capital lease obligations

Notes payable

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Lone Star Lone Star
State Bank of State
West Texas Bancshares, Inc. Eliminating Consolidated
(Bank) (LSSBI) Entries Balance
$ 88,902,368 $ 352,913 $ (352,913) $ 88,902,368
5,545,750 - - 5,545,750
94,448,118 352,913 (352,913) 94,448,118
6,150,110 - - 6,150,110
29,809,797 - - 29,809,797
2,526,750 - - 2,526,750
637,767,619 - - 637,767,619
(7,164,209) - - (7,164,209)
630,603,410 - - 630,603,410
9,513,036 3,578 - 9,516,614
8,738,447 - - 8,738,447
936,690 5,160 - 941,850
- 93,911,408 (93,911,408) -
$ 782,726,358 $ 94,273,059 $ (94,264,321) $ 782,735,096
$ 185,376,682 $ = $ (352,913) $ 185,023,769
501,819,585 - - 501,819,585
354,869 - - 354,869
256,265 69,653 - 325,918
1,007,549 - - 1,007,549
- 2,885,000 - 2,885,000
688,814,950 2,954,653 (352,913) 691,416,690
2,250,000 5,536,962 (2,250,000) 5,536,962
71,933,839 63,854,224 (71,933,839) 63,854,224
19,649,651 21,849,302 (19,649,651) 21,849,302
77,918 77,918 (77,918) 77,918
93,911,408 91,318,406 (93,911,408) 91,318,406
$ 782,726,358 $ 94,273,059 $ (94,264,321) $ 782,735,096
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fees
Available-for-sale securities
Federal funds sold and interest-beaing
deposits in banks

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Other debt

Total interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NET INTEREST INCOME, AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts
Debit card income
Other noninterest income
Net gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets
Equity in subsidiary earnings
Total noninterest income

NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Data processing
FDIC assessment expense
Professional fees
Advertising
Communication
Legal
Amortization of intangible assets
Other general and administrative

Total noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Lone Star Lone Star
State Bank of State
West Texas Bancshares, Inc. Eliminating Consolidated
(Bank) (LSSBI) Entries Balance
$ 30,424,211 $ - $ = $ 30,424,211
649,004 - - 649,004
200,893 - - 200,893
31,274,108 - - 31,274,108
3,957,420 - - 3,957,420
32,404 120,617 - 153,021
3,989,824 120,617 - 4,110,441
27,284,284 (120,617) - 27,163,667
3,500,000 - - 3,500,000
23,784,284 (120,617) - 23,663,667
591,602 - - 591,602
369,144 - - 369,144
154,606 - - 154,606
(3,076) - - (3,076)
- 10,057,140 (10,057,140) -
1,112,276 10,057,140 (10,057,140) 1,112,276
9,718,990 320,755 - 10,039,745
1,366,540 - - 1,366,540
774,508 - - 774,508
440,635 - - 440,635
225,377 11,405 - 236,782
97,215 - - 97,215
322,486 - - 322,486
24,220 7,196 - 31,416
388,448 - - 388,448
1,438,200 43,474 - 1,481,674
14,796,619 382,830 - 15,179,449
10,099,941 9,553,693 (10,057,140) 9,596,494
42,801 - - 42,801
$ 10,057,140 $ 9,553,693 $ (10,057,140) $ 9,553,693
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LONE STAR STATE BANCSHARES, INC.
6220 Milwaukee Avenue
Lubbock, Texas 79424

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD MAY 26, 2016, AT 5:00 P.M.

To the Shareholders of Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc.:

The 2016 Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. will be held on
Thursday, May 26, 2016, at 5:00 p.m., local time, at our office, 6220 Milwaukee Avenue, Lubbock,
Texas. At the meeting, shareholders will be asked to:

1. Elect directors; and

2 Consider any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournment of the meeting.

The matters to be considered at the annual meeting are more fully discussed in the attached proxy
statement, which we urge you to read carefully. Shareholders of record at the close of business on April
28, 2016, our record date, are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting or any
adjournment or postponement of the meeting.

You are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. However, whether or not you expect to
attend the meeting in person, we urge you to sign, date and return the enclosed proxy sheet at your earliest
convenience. This will ensure the presence of a quorum at the meeting and that your shares are voted in
accordance with your wishes. For your convenience, we have enclosed a self-addressed, stamped
envelope for the return of your proxy. Your prompt response will help reduce the cost of soliciting
proxies, which are paid for by our company. Sending in your proxy will not prevent you from voting
your stock at the meeting if you desire to do so, as your proxy is revocable at your option. You may
revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the meeting in the manner described in the section of
the proxy statement titled “General Information About the Meeting — Can I change my vote?” Any
executed but unmarked proxy sheets that we receive will be voted in favor of the directors nominated by
the board.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 28, 2016 Alan Lackey
Lubbock, Texas Chairman & Chief Executive Officer



PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD MAY 26, 2016

This proxy statement contains information about the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. The meeting is scheduled to be held on Thursday, May 26, 2016,
beginning at 5:00 p.m., at our office, located at 6220 Milwaukee Avenue, Lubbock, Texas.

This proxy statement is furnished to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our
board of directors. When we refer in this proxy statement to “the Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us,” we
are referring to Lone Star State Bancshares, Inc. unless the context indicates otherwise. When we refer
in this proxy statement to “the Bank, ” we are referring to Lone Star State Bank of West Texas unless the

context indicates otherwise.
GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING
What is the‘purpose of the annual meeting?

At the annual meeting, you will be asked to elect directors and consider any other business that
may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.

How many votes do I have?

You will have one vote for every share of common stock that you owned on April 28, 2016, our
record date.

How many votes can be cast by all shareholders?

As of April 28, 2016, 5,550,962 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding and held of
record by approximately 169 shareholders.

How many votes must be present to hold the meeting?

In order for business to be conducted at the meeting, a quorum must be present. A quorum
consists of a majority of the shares of common stock issued and outstanding on the record date and
entitled to vote, or at least 2,775,482 shares. Shares of common stock represented at the annual meeting
in person or by a properly executed proxy (including shares that abstain or do not vote with respect to one
or more of the matters to be acted upon) will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum
exists. If a quorum does not exist, the annual meeting will be adjourned until a quorum is obtained.
Accordingly, we urge you to vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the meeting; so that we will know
as soon as possible that enough votes will be present for us to hold the meeting.

How do I vote?

You may vote by completing and returning the enclosed proxy sheet or by voting in person at the
meeting. We encourage you to attend the annual meeting, and execution of the enclosed proxy will not
affect your right to attend the meeting and vote in person. However, to ensure that your shares are voted
in accordance with your wishes and that a quorum is present at the meeting so that we can transact
business, we urge you to complete, sign and return the enclosed proxy sheet to us as promptly as possible
in the enclosed, self-addressed, stamped envelope. Your prompt response will help reduce proxy costs,
which are paid for by the Company.



Voting by proxy. If you vote by proxy, your proxy will be voted in accordance with your
instructions. If you execute a proxy, but do not specify a choice on the election of directors, your proxy
will be voted “FOR” the persons nominated by our board of directors to serve as directors. Our board of
directors does not know of any other matters to be presented for a vote at the annual meeting, other than
the election of directors. If any other matters are brought before the annual meeting, the persons named in
the proxies, acting under the proxy, would have the discretion to vote on those matters in accordance with
their best judgment.

Voting in person. If you attend the meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy sheet in
person or you may vote by completing a ballot which will be available at the meeting.

Can I change my vote?

Yes, you may change your vote by sending in a new proxy sheet with a later date, or by sending a
written notice of revocation to the Secretary of the Company at the address on the Notice of Annual
Meeting of Shareholders. To be effective, the new proxy sheet or written revocation must be received by
the Secretary prior to the exercise of the proxy at the annual meeting. If you attend the meeting and want
to vote in person, you can deliver a written revocation of your proxy to the Secretary at the meeting, and
you will receive a ballot to vote at the meeting. However, mere attendance at the shareholders’ meeting
will not of itself revoke a proxy.

What if my shares are not registered in my name?

If your shares are not registered in your name, you will need to bring appropriate documentation
from the record shareholder to vote in person at the annual meeting. If you have any questions regarding
the documentation required, please contact Debbie Gleason at (806) 771-7717.

What happens if the meeting is postponed or adjourned?

Your proxy will still be good and may be voted at the postponed or adjourned meeting. You will
still be able to change or revoke your proxy until it is voted.

What vote is required to approve the election of directors?

The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast in person or by proxy at the annual meeting is
required for the election of directors. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no legal effect on the
election of directors. As of April 28, 2016, our executive officers and directors owned beneficially
2,137,382 shares, or approximately 36.4%, of our outstanding common stock. These individuals have
indicated that they intend at this time to vote their shares in favor of the directors nominated by the board.

What does the board recommend?

Our board of directors has unanimously approved and recommends that you vote “FOR” the
directors nominated by the board.

Are there any other matters to be voted on at the meeting?

We know of no other business that is likely to be brought before the annual meeting. If any other
matters are properly brought before the meeting, or any adjournment thereof, the persons named in the
proxies, acting under the proxy, will have discretion to vote on those matters in accordance with their best
judgment.

(8]



ITEM ONE - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our board of directors currently consists of seven members, each of which is to be elected at the
annual meeting. The board has nominated the following seven individuals to serve as directors of the
Company until the 2017 annual meeting of shareholders: Frosty Gilliam, Jr., Mark Hallgren, Alan
Lackey, Charles E. Needham, William Wade Porter, William J. Ware and Tol Ware. Each of the
nominees currently serves as a director of the Company. The directors elected at the annual meeting will
hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their respective successors are elected
and qualified. Information concerning the nominees is set forth below.

Frosty Gilliam, Jr. has served as a director of the Company and the Bank since our inception in
2007. Mr. Gilliam is a 1980 graduate of Texas A & M University with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Petroleum Engineering. Mr. Gilliam began his career in the oil and gas industry in 1980 with Amoco
Production Company. After four years with Amoco, he joined Oxoco, Inc. in Houston, Texas as the
Production Engineering Manager for the Western U.S. In 1987, Mr. Gilliam left Oxoco to become the
Acquisition Manager for an independent oil and gas producer located in Dallas, Texas. In April 1988,
Mr. Gilliam returned to Odessa to begin his company, Aghorn Energy, Inc. Since 1988, Mr. Gilliam has
seen Aghorn grow from a company with two wells to one that now has over 1,000 wells in two states. In
addition to oil and gas, Mr. Gilliam has been, or is a founding partner in, companies that are involved in
real estate, ranching, music royalties and electric power. Mr. Gilliam was inducted into the Texas A&M
Petroleum Engineering Academy of Distinguished Graduates in 2009 and recognized by the Texas A&M
Dwight Look College of Engineering as an Outstanding Alumni in 2012. Mr. Gilliam currently serves on
the Texas A&M 12" Man Foundation as a Trustee. Mr. Gilliam has been married to his wife, Rhonda, for
over 30 years and they have two children and one grandchild. Mr. Gilliam presently resides in Odessa
where he is actively involved in First Baptist Church, numerous charities and serves on the boards of the
Permian Basin Mission Center and the Odessa Country Club.

Mark S. Hallgren, AHC has served as a director of the Company and the Bank since our
inception in 2007. Mr. Hallgren is the co-founder and president of the Hallgren Company, a life safety
and security consulting entity and distributor of architectural doors, frames and hardware as well as other
building specialties for use in commercial construction projects. Founded in 1975, The Hallgren
Company has experienced steady growth through expansion and acquisitions. From the original location
in Lubbock, Texas, the company has offices in Midland and Ft. Worth, Texas; Albuquerque, New
Mexico; Colorado Springs, Colorado; Livermore, California; Las Vegas, Nevada and Phoenix,

Arizona. Mr. Hallgren is known and respected industry wide for his life safety expertise. His knowledge
of building codes, life safety and security applications is relied upon by the commercial building industry
on a daily basis. Mr. Hallgren obtained his AHC (Architectural Hardware Consultant) accreditation in
1980 at the age of 20, one of the youngest recipients in the history of the industry. He has served as
President of the Door and Hardware Institute, an international non-profit organization with 5,000
members dedicated to the advancement of life safety and security. He is Past President and current board
member of the Door Security and Safety Foundation. Their mission is to promote secure and safe
openings that enhance life safety through awareness and education to the building design, code authority,
and facility management communities. He is also actively involved as an officer and/or Director in 16
other corporations of various industries ranging from manufacturing to aviation and trustee over several
large commercial trusts. Many of these entities are involved in the construction industry and have
significant real estate holdings. Mr. Hallgren has been a resident of Lubbock, Texas and a successful
business owner in the West Texas area for over 40 years.



Alan Lackey has served as a director of the Company and Bank and as Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer since the Bank’s inception in 2007. Mr. Lackey has been actively engaged in
banking for the past 34 years. After graduating with an undergraduate degree in accounting with honors
and a Masters in Business Administration from Baylor University in 1982, Mr. Lackey joined MBank
Dallas, N.A., a $20 billion regional bank, where he served until 1990. When he left the bank, which was
acquired during his employment by Bank One, he was Manager of the Correspondent Banking
Department. He joined First National Bank, Lubbock, Texas, a subsidiary of the Ford Bank Group, Inc.,
Lubbock, Texas, where he ultimately managed commercial and real estate lending for the $1 billion
Lubbock office. First National Bank was acquired by Norwest Corporation, (which later merged with
Wells Fargo & Co.) during his employment with the bank. Mr. Lackey left Wells Fargo (Texas), N.A. to
join State National Bank in 1996. He was there until 2007. His final five years, he served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of State National Bancshares, Inc., which grew to be a $1.7
billion dollar publicly traded commercial banking company with offices in 18 Texas and New Mexico
communities. In this role, Mr. Lackey oversaw and was responsible for all loans, lending activity, and
lending operations in a total loan portfolio of almost $1.1 billion. State National Bancshares was acquired
by BBVA Compass in 2006. And in 2007, Mr. Lackey joined with others to start Lone Star State
Bank. Mr. Lackey has held various board and leadership positions with numerous organizations,
including United Way, Lakeridge United Methodist Church, Texas Bankers Association, American
Bankers Association, Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and Community Bank Advisory Council. He is
currently Board Chair of Early Learning Centers in Lubbock.

Charles E. Needham has served as a director of the Company and the Bank since our inception
in 2007. Mr. Needham moved to Lubbock from Dalhart, Texas in 1980. He attended and graduated from
Texas Tech with a Finance Degree emphasizing in investments. Upon graduating from college, Mr.
Needham began selling Real Estate being employed by Jim Wills Realtors. In 1987, he began his career
with the Stryker Corporation in orthopedic sales. He formed his own distributorship and began Omni-
Tex Medical in 1992 selling a complete line of medical products in West Texas and New Mexico,
including Stryker products. In 1997 he formed a property company, Needham Properties, Inc., owning
and managing commercial and residential real estate. Mr. Needham continues to sell medical products
along with investing in real estate.

Wade Porter has served as a director of the Company and the Bank since our inception in 2007.
Mr. Porter has more than 35 years of banking experience and currently serves as a director and Executive
Vice President/Chief Lending Officer of Amarillo National Bank, a $3.8 billion asset commercial bank
based in Amarillo, Texas. Mr. Porter began his banking career in 1980 as a teller with Plains National
Bank, Lubbock, Texas and First National Bank, Lubbock, Texas while attending Texas Tech University.
After graduating in 1983 with his Bachelor of Business Administration degree in finance, he joined
Mercantile National Bank, Dallas, Texas (which was renamed to MBank Dallas, N.A. on October 15,
1984) in its credit training program, before becoming a commercial lender and correspondent banker with
MBank in 1985 and rising to First Vice President and Department Manager of the Correspondent Banking
Department. He left MBank’s successor, Bank One, Texas N.A., to join Amarillo National Bank in 1991.

William J. Ware has served as a director of the Company and the Bank since our inception in
2007. Mr. Ware has been actively involved in banking for approximately 13 years, with experience in
lending, operations, marketing and media relations. Mr. Ware has served as a commercial loan officer
with Amarillo National Bank since May 2003. Mr. Ware is Executive Vice President of Amarillo
National Bank and Director of Amarillo National Bancorp, Inc. Prior to joining Amarillo National Bank,
he served as a commercial loan analyst with Frost National Bank in San Antonio from August 2002 to
May 2003. Mr. Ware is a 2002 graduate of Southern Methodist University, where he earned a Bachelor’s
of Science degree in corporate communications and a minor in history. Mr. Ware is very active in local




civic and community organizations including Children’s Miracle Network, Amarillo Chamber of
Commerce, and United Way.

Tol Ware has been involved in banking since rolling coins in the vault of Amarillo National Bank at 12 years
old. He is the youngest of the fifth generation of ownership and management of Amarillo National Bank.
Before he began high school, he had worked his way up to teller. In high school Mr. Ware mentored under his
father, Bill Ware, and his grandfather, Tol Ware, working in various areas of the bank through his high school
work program. He earned a degree in Film from Arizona State University 2007 and worked in the film
industry for 3 years. In 2010 he moved back home to return to his banking career. He completed the
management training program at Amarillo National Bank and is now an AVP in commercial lending after
stints in almost every department in the bank. He serves on the board at Cal Farley's, Center City and Amarillo
Business Foundation and is very active civically. Mr. Ware is the father of two boys - a one year old and a
newborn.

Voting

The directors will be elected by a plurality of votes cast, in person or by proxy, at the annual
meeting. The persons named in the enclosed proxy will vote to elect the nominees as directors, unless
you withhold authority to vote for the election of the nominees as directors by marking the proxy to that
effect. The nominees have indicated a willingness to serve, if elected, but if any nominee should be
unable or unwilling to serve, proxies may be voted for a substitute nominee designated by our board of
directors.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of common stock by:
e each person known to us to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock,

e each of our executive officers and directors, and
e all directors and executive officers, as a group.

The number of shares indicated in the table as beneficially owned, and the percentage ownership
information, is based on “beneficial ownership” concepts as defined by the federal securities laws. In
general, beneficial ownership includes shares owned by spouses, minor children and other relatives
residing in the same household, trusts, partnerships, corporations or deferred compensation plans which
are affiliated with the principal, as well as shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of stock
options and other rights beneficially owned that are exercisable on or before April 28, 2016.

The beneficial ownership concept is broad and may result in the attribution of the same shares to
multiple persons. For example, our Employee Stock Ownership Plan is managed by three trustees.
Under the “beneficial ownership rules”, all of those shares are attributable to each trustee, and each
beneficiary is also shown as beneficially owning the shares in his/her account. In addition, the shares
held by a trust will be attributable to all the trustees as well as the beneficiaries. We would caution you
against overreliance on the beneficial ownership percentages because they may be misleading as they
relate to any specific person, for the reasons described above. However, the collective ownership
percentage of the board of directors and management may be more meaningful because the effects of
duplication are eliminated in the aggregate percentage.
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The applicable percentage of ownership for each shareholder is based on 5,550,962 shares of
common stock outstanding as of April 28, 2016. In addition, shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of options and other rights beneficially owned that are exercisable on or before April 28, 2016,
are deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of the person holding
those options and other rights, and the group as a whole, but are not deemed outstanding for computing
the percentage ownership of any other person. The address of our directors and executive officers is the
same as our address. To our knowledge, unless indicated in the footnotes to this table and pursuant to
applicable community property laws, each person named in the table has sole voting and investment
power with respect to all shares of common stock attributed to him. The references to ownership are
derived from our stock transfer books.

Number of Shares Ownership
Name Beneficially Owned” Percentage
Directors and Executive Officers:
Brent Beakley 534,046 9.57%
Ron Brooks 25516 *46%
Mike Davis 4,904 *.09%
Frosty Gilliam, Jr. 242,545 4.36%
Lestie Glover 34,168 * 61%
Mark Hallgren 121,959 2.19%
Alan Lackey 198,151 3.52%
Edmund McGee 33,9151 * 61%
Charles E. Needham 38,4017 *69%
Wade Porter 144,658 2.59%
R. Michael Richardson 44,2701 * 80%
Melisa Roberts 539,399 9.67%
Kirk Thomas 536,796 9.61%
William J. Ware 397,660 75216 7.15%
Tol Ware 349,398(131415.16) 6.29%
All directors and executive officers, as a group (15 2,137,382 ** 36.40% **
persons)
Additional Greater Than 5% Shareholders:
Richard Ware 1,545,806 27.85%
Miles Childers 1,532,524(19) 27.61%
Rick B. Leverich 1,510,9331419 27.22%
Mary Savannah Ware Singleton 341,0151%114.16) 6.14%
Patrick O'Neill Ware 420,54846:16) 7.58%

Notes to beneficial ownership table

~  Beneficial ownership includes shares owned by trusts for which the individual acts as joint trustee, shares owned by trusts that benefit the

individual shown, shares owned personally and/or vested options.
*  Represents less than 1.0% of the total outstanding shares of common stock.
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** The number of shares and percentage shown is not a total of these columns. It represents the shares and percentage for which directors and

executive officers have voting or beneficial control.

(1) Includes shares issuable upon exercise of vested options as follows: Mr. Beakley — 29,750, Mr. Brooks — 15,100, Mr. Gilliam - 14,000,
Ms. Glover — 17,200, Mr. Hallgren — 14,000, Mr. Lackey ~ 75,000, Mr. McGee - 17,200, Mr. Needham - 13,000, Mr. Porter - 34,000, Mr.
Richardson - 15,500, Ms. Roberts — 29,750, Mr. Thomas — 32,499 and Mr. William J. Ware — 14,000.

(2) The Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) owns a total of 504,296 shares representing 9.08%. Mr. Beakley, Ms. Roberts and Mr.
Thomas serve as Trustees of the ESOP with any one of the three holding voting rights for all the stock owned by the ESOP for purposes of
this proxy statement.

(3) Includes shares held by the ESOP allocated as follows: Mr. Brooks — 10,415.60, Mr. Davis — 4,904.14, Ms. Glover — 14,743.10, Mr.
Lackey — 44,838.23, Mr. McGee - 13,597.18, and Mr. Richardson — 11,313.89.

(4) Includes 141,204 shares, representing 2.54%, owned by Patrick O'Neill Ware 1976 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Mr. Patrick O’Neill Ware, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(5) Includes 201,153 shares, representing 3.62% owned by Patrick O’Neill Ware 1982 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Mr. Patrick O’Neill Ware, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(6) Includes 38,102 shares representing .69% owned by Richard Ware 2009 GRAT shown as beneficially owned by Mr. Patrick Ware and Mr.
Richard Ware.

(7) Includes 157,185 shares, representing 2.83%, owned by William J. Ware 1976 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Mr. William J. Ware, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(8) Includes 192,861 shares, representing 3.47% owned by William J. Ware 1982 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Mr. William J. Ware, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(9) Includes 15,243 shares representing .27% owned by Richard Ware 2010 GRAT shown as beneficially owned by Mr. William J. Ware and
Mr. Richard Ware.

(10) Includes 1,269,976 shares held by trusts for which Mr. Richard Ware serves as joint trustee with Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.
Additionally includes 74,936 shares held by trust for which Mr. Richard Ware is beneficiary.

(11) All shares are owned by trusts for which Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich serve as a joint trustees with Mr. Richard Ware for beneficiaries of
the Ware family.

(12) Includes 100,058 shares, representing 1.80% owned by Mary Savannah Ware 1976 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Ms. Singleton, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(13) Includes 105,723 shares, representing 1.90% owned by Mary Savannah Ware 1982 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Ms. Singleton, Mr. Tol Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(14) Includes 135,234 shares, representing 2.44% owned by William T. Ware 1982 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially
owned by Ms. Singleton, Mr. Tol Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(15) Includes 99,032 shares, representing 1.78% owned by William T. Ware 1976 Grandchildren’s Successor Trust shown as beneficially owned
by Mr. Tol Ware, Mr. Richard Ware, Mr. Childers and Mr. Leverich.

(16) The total number of shares owned by the Ware family individually and in trusts and by other Ware Group members is 2,225,516 shares or
40.09% of total shares outstanding.

Certain transactions

Certain of our officers, directors and principal shareholders, their immediate families and their
affiliates have deposit accounts with our subsidiary, the Bank, and from time to time, the Company or the
Bank may enter into other transactions in the ordinary course of business and otherwise with certain of
our officers, directors or principal shareholders. In all cases, these transactions are and will be made on
the same basis and terms as similar transactions made with persons or entities that are not officers,
directors or principal shareholders of the Company and do not involve more than the normal risk of
collectability or involve a delinquency as to payment of principal or interest or present other unfavorable
features. All loans made to our officers, directors, principal shareholders, their immediate families and
their affiliates are believed to be in compliance with the Financial Institutions Regulatory and Interest
Rate Control Act of 1978. As of the date of this proxy statement, none of such loans was categorized as
nonaccrual, past due, restructured or potential problem loans. We expect to continue to enter into
transactions in the ordinary course of business on similar terms with our officers, directors and principal
shareholders, their immediate families and their affiliates.



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We will bear all costs of the solicitation of proxies by our board. In addition to soliciting proxies
through the mail, proxies may be solicited by our directors and officers in person or by telephone or other
means of communication. Our directors and officers will not receive additional compensation for their
efforts during this solicitation, but may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the solicitation. After the original mailing of the proxies and other solicitation materials, we request
that brokers, custodians, nominees and other record holders of common stock forward copies of the proxy
statement, proxy and solicitation materials to beneficial owners for whom they hold shares.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 28, 2016 Alan Lackey
Lubbock, Texas Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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